VILLAGE OF
CALEDONIA

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING AGENDA
Tuesday, September 30, 2025 at 9:00 a.m.
Caledonia Village Hall - 5043 Chester Lane
Caledonia, WI 53402

Meeting called to order
Roll Call

Approval of Minutes:
A. July 29, 2025, Meeting Minutes

New Business

A. Case No. 25-004, 12900 Northwestern Ave. Todd Dombrowski, Applicant. Requesting variances
from Section 16-10-3(a)(1): Area of Accessory Structures, and Section 16-10-3(a)(3): Height of
Accessory Structures, to allow for the construction of a 36’ x 44’ accessory building, 1584 square
feet in area and approximately 20 feet in height (Parcel ID No. 104-04-22-30-055-000). More
information at Caledonia Zoning Hub: https://s.zoninghub.com/Z85PP822PA

B. Case No. 25-005, State Highway 38. Robert Prochaska, Applicant. Requesting a variance from
Section 16-10-1(c): General Requirements, to allow for the construction of a 120” x 120’ pole
building with a side setback of 7.5 feet (Parcel ID No. 104-04-22-09-061-010). More information at
Caledonia Zoning Hub: https://s.zoninghub.com/RKAKH1UHDV

Board Meeting
A. Deliberate the request of Case No. 25-004, Todd Dombrowski

B. Decision on Case No. 25-004, Todd Dombrowski
C. Deliberate the request of Case No. 25-005, Robert Prochaska
C. Decision on Case No. 25-005, Robert Prochaska

Adjournment

1|Page
The Village of Caledonia complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). All meetings are wheelchair accessible.
Contact the Village Clerk for special accommodations at 262-835-6414.


https://s.zoninghub.com/Z85PP822PA
https://s.zoninghub.com/RKAKH1UHDV

VILLAGE OF CALEDONIA ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
Village Hall, 5043 Chester Lane, Racine, WI 53402
Tuesday, July 29, 2025, at 9:00 a.m.

1. Meeting called to order
Chairperson Kuemmel called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.

2. Roll Call: Board Members in attendance: Joan Rennert, Richard Mielke, Jacob
Lovdahl, Rosanne Kuemmel, John Barnes, and Ron Bocciardi.

Staff Present: Development Director Peter Wagner, Planner/Zoning Administrator Natalia Nery de
Farias.

3A. Approval of Minutes

Motion by Lovdahl to accept the minutes of March 26, 2024. Seconded by Mielke. Motion
carried unanimously.

4A. Public Hearing. Kuemmel read the variance request and the meeting process.

Public Hearing

Jim Fox Requesting a variance from Municipal Code
1908 Cleveland Avenue Section 16-10-3(a)(4). The applicant is requesting
Racine, WI 53405 a variance to allow for a side yard setback of 4 feet

for a proposed 24’ x 20’ addition to the existing
detached garage located at 2333 Indian Trail.

Kuemmel opened the Public Hearing portion of the meeting at 9:04 a.m.

Natalia Nery de Farias swore in appellant Jim Fox, 1908 Cleveland Avenue, Racine, W1 53405.
Fox explained the request for a variance. He explained the homeowner would like to build a 24’ x
20’ addition to the back of the existing 24’ x 30 detached garage. The existing garage is 4 feet

from the lot line. Building the addition following the required 5-foot setback would alter the roof
lines and compromise the aesthetic of the garage.

Kuemmel asked three times if anyone wanted to speak in favor of the variance.
In favor: William Keckhaver, 2333 Indian Trail, Caledonia, WI 53402.

Keckhaver stated that he would like to expand the garage within the same limits as the existing
garage. The current side yard setback is 4 feet, and he would like to maintain the same distance for
the addition. He has been living on the property for 28 years, and the accessory structure was built
prior to that. Currently, there is a privacy fence on that side of the property.

Fox added that, if granted the variance, he will provide a new plat of survey representing the site
to assess the exact measurement between the garage and the side lot line.

Kuemmel asked three times if anyone wanted to speak in opposition to the variance.
1



Against: None.

Kuemmel asked if the Zoning Administrator wanted to provide any testimony. The Zoning
Administrator stated no. Kuemmel asked if the applicant wanted to provide additional testimony.
The applicant stated no. Kuemmel asked the Board if they had any questions for staff or the
applicant regarding the case.

The Board reminded the applicant that there is a set of criteria to be met for granting variances and
asked him to further detail how the proposed addition may fit these criteria. Fox stated that placing
the addition one foot off the current alignment of the garage would interrupt gutter lines and create
more impervious surfaces on the lot. The Board argued that the justification provided by Fox is
sensible but does not fit the criteria. Fox and Keckhaver were given a moment to revise the
application and variance criteria.

Fox amended his explanation by stating that following the current side setback requirement would
devalue the property. The Board asked if neighboring properties would be negatively impacted by
the addition. Fox contended that there is a wood privacy fence separating the building from the
neighboring property to the east, which has only landscaping on that side yard.

The Board asked the applicant if any neighboring properties contained accessory buildings with 4-
foot setbacks. Fox confirmed, adding that the previous zoning code required 3-foot setbacks for
accessory structures.

Kuemmel reviewed the appeals process with the applicant and then asked if there were any other
questions. No further questions were asked. Kuemmel closed the public hearing at 9:24 a.m.

5. Board Meeting

S5A. Deliberate the request of Case No. 25-001, Jim Fox
Kuemmel reviewed the request with the Board and opened the floor for Board discussion.

The Board, in analyzing the plat of survey provided by the applicant, asked staff if the fence is
parallel to the side lot line. Staff replied that, since the hand drawing provided may not be accurate,
this information cannot be confirmed. Staff reminded the Board that the applicant committed to
providing a new plat of survey in case the variance is approved, which would confirm the exact
measurements and position of structures on the lot.

The Board proceeded to discuss the findings of fact criteria:

e Preservation of intent: Accessory structures such as detached garages are uses permitted in
the R-5 district.

o Exceptional circumstances: The existing detached garage was built following the previous
zoning code. The new ordinance requirements, in differing from previous standards, impose
an exceptional circumstance on the existing detached garage.

e Preservation of property rights: Granting the variance will preserve property rights by
Keckhaver and other property owners in the same district and vicinity.




e Absence of detriment: Granting the variance will not result in detriment to neighboring
properties.

5B. Decision on Case No. 25-001, Jim Fox

Rennert made a motion to grant the requested variance for Case No. 25-001 for a side yard setback
of 4 feet for a proposed 24’ x 20’ addition to the existing 24’ x 30’ detached garage based on the
Board’s findings of fact. Seconded by Mielke. Motion carried unanimously.

4B. Public Hearing. Kuemmel read the variance request and the meeting process.

Public Hearing

Jim Fox Requesting a variance from Municipal Code Section
1908 Cleveland Avenue 16-10-3(a)(4). The applicant is requesting a variance
Racine, WI 53405 to allow for a side yard setback of 3 feet and a

distance of 5 feet from the principal structure for a
proposed 24’ x 24’ detached garage addition to the
existing single-family home located at 5333
Willowview Road.

Kuemmel opened the Public Hearing portion of the meeting at 9:35 a.m.

The appellant, Jim Fox, had been sworn in at the start of the first public hearing. Natalia Nery de Farias
swore in the homeowner, Randall Wetzel, 5333 Willowview Road, Caledonia, WI 53402.

Fox explained the request for variances. He explained the homeowner would like to build a 24’ x
24> detached garage. The first request is related to the required 10-foot distance from the principal
structure. The applicant argued that the Uniform Building Code (UBC) states that any structure
closer than 5 feet from another, in this case, the principal structure and proposed garage, is required
to be reinforced with firewalls. The exterior walls of the existing attached garage were built using
drywall coated with brick veneer, which provides two fire-resistant barriers.

The second request is related to the required 5-foot setback from the side lot line. Due to the irregular
shape of the lot, the proposed building could only be located 3 feet away from the side lot line. This
setback would be similar to that of most accessory structures in neighboring properties. Fox also
explained that the principal structure was built on an angle that hampers the construction of
accessory structures on the lot. Currently, the property has metal sheds that would potentially be
substituted by the proposed detached garage.

Fox added that, if granted the variance, he will provide a new plat of survey representing the site
to assess the exact measurements of proposed and existing structures.

Kuemmel asked three times if anyone wanted to speak in favor of the variance.
In Favor: None.

Kuemmel asked three times if anyone wanted to speak in opposition to the variance.

3



Against: Brenda Krause, 5422 West Branch Trail, Wind Point, WI 53402

Krause argued that the proposed detached garage would negatively impact property values and the
overall desirability of the neighborhood. She also expressed concern about noise pollution, since she
works from home and would not be able to open her bedroom window due to the proximity to the
proposed garage. Additionally, she raised questions about water runoff, backyard wildlife, and waste.

Against: Jason Haen, 5416 West Branch Trail, Wind Point, WI 53402

On behalf of Haen, Krause read his statement in opposition to the request. Haen expressed great
concern about noise pollution and the potential negative effect on the value of surrounding
neighboring properties. According to Haen’s statement, Wetzel manifested the intention of working
on vehicles in the proposed garage, which would not fit within the residential character of the
neighborhood.

Against: Village of Wind Point, 215 E. Four Mile Road, Wind Point, WI 53402

On behalf of the Village of Wind Point, Jeffrey Sanders, Zoning Administrator, submitted a letter in
opposition to the request. Sanders affirmed that examples of exceptional circumstances include steep
slopes, wetlands, or other natural features that prevent compliance with the ordinance. Sanders’
examination of the available data layers in the Racine County Mapbook did not reveal any physical
limitations justifying granting the variance. Therefore, no exceptional circumstances appear to apply
to the parcel in question. Additionally, the owner must prove that compliance with code standards
would unreasonably prevent him from using the property for a permitted use. The parcel currently
hosts a single-family dwelling, which is a permitted use in the R-5 district.

Kuemmel asked if the Zoning Administrator wanted to provide any testimony. The Zoning
Administrator stated no. Kuemmel asked if the applicant or homeowner wanted to provide additional
testimony. Wetzel contended that he was not approached by neighbors about the proposed garage.
He also added that the garage would only be utilized for storage. No work would be done on vehicles.

Fox stated that, if granted the variance, the metal sheds on the property would be substituted by the
detached garage to improve the overall aesthetic of accessory structures on the property.

The Board asked Fox what the distance from the edge of the metal sheds to the side property line
was. Fox stated that the distance from one of the sheds to the lot line is approximately seven feet.
The other metal shed was approximately two feet from the lot line. Both are temporary structures.

The Board asked Fox the reason why the proposed garage is detached instead of attached. Fox argued
that the possibility was discussed; however, a frost wall would also be required, which would increase
the costs for the homeowner. Additionally, the setbacks from lot lines required for attached structures
would be greater than those for detached structures.



The Board asked if the applicant had any evidence that Wetzel’s property was under exceptional
circumstances in comparison to neighboring parcels. Fox stated that most properties within that
subdivision had attached garages. Those with detached garages were three feet from the lot lines. The
Board reminded Fox that physical evidence was necessary to confirm his affirmation. Fox asked staff
if the structure could be built in the rear yard and be in compliance with code. Staff confirmed that it
would be possible if all setback and height requirements were met.

The Board asked the homeowner if his neighbors were in favor of the location of the proposed garage.
Wetzel replied that he has two neighbors abutting his property within the limits of Caledonia. One of
them was not in opposition to the project. The other neighbor was not contacted.

Kuemmel reviewed the appeals process to the applicant and then asked if there were any other
questions. No further questions were asked. Kuemmel closed the public hearing at 10:23 a.m.

5. Board Meeting

5C. Deliberate the request of Case No. 25-002, Jim Fox

Kuemmel reviewed the request with the Board and opened the floor for Board discussion.

Upon analysis of the testimonial, the Board stated that there are other options the applicant could
pursue to build the detached garage, such as placing the structure in the rear yard. Additionally,
testimonials against the project point to a potential negative effect on neighboring properties. The
Board then proceeded to analyze each request, i) 5 feet from the principal structure and i1) 3 feet from
the side lot line, separately.

i Variance request to allow for a distance of 5 feet from the principal structure

The Board proceeded to discuss the findings of fact criteria:

e Preservation of intent: Accessory structures such as detached garages are uses permitted in
the R-4 district.

o Exceptional circumstances: Neighboring properties with detached garages followed
setbacks from the previous zoning code, which was less restrictive than the current zoning
code. The irregular shape of the lot creates exceptional circumstances that make it difficult
for the property owner to follow current zoning restrictions.

e Preservation of property rights: Granting the variance will preserve property rights of
Wetzel and other property owners in the same district and vicinity.

o Absence of detriment: Granting the variance will not result in detriment to neighboring
properties.

ii. Variance request to allow for a side yard setback of 3 feet

The Board proceeded to discuss the findings of fact criteria:
e Preservation of intent: Accessory structures such as detached garages are uses permitted in
the R-4 district.
o Exceptional circumstances: Neighboring properties in similar conditions contain detached
structures following the zoning code. Additionally, the property owner has other options

5



regarding the placement of the detached structure. Therefore, no exceptional circumstances
apply to the intended use.

e Preservation of property rights: Granting the variance will not preserve the property rights
of other property owners in the same district because no other neighboring properties contain
detached structures with 3-foot setbacks.

e Absence of detriment: Neighboring property owners would be negatively impacted by the
proposed addition in closer proximity to the property line due to increased noise, water runoff,
and overall aesthetic of the neighborhood.

5D. Decision on Case No. 25-002, Jim Fox

i. Variance request to allow for a distance of 5 feet from the principal structure
Lovdhal made a motion to grant the requested variance for Case No. 25-002 for a 5-foot distance
from the principal structure for a proposed detached garage addition to the existing single-family

home based on the Board’s findings of fact. Seconded by Mielke. Motion carried unanimously.

il Variance request to allow for a side yard setback of 3 feet

Lovdhal made a motion to deny the requested variance for Case No. 25-002 for a side yard setback
of 3 feet for a proposed detached garage based on the Board’s findings of fact. Seconded by Mielke.

Barnes — Yes Mielke — Yes Rennert — No Lovdahl — Yes Kuemmel - Yes

The vote is 4-1 to deny the variance request. Motion carried.

4C. Public Hearing. Kuemmel read the variance request and the meeting process.

Public Hearing

Jim Fox Requesting variances from Sections 16-6-2(b) and
1908 Cleveland Avenue 16-10-3(a)(4). The applicant 1is requesting
Racine, WI 53405 variances to allow for a street yard setback of 20

feet for a proposed 24’ x 36’ detached garage
addition to the existing single-family home located
at 5712 Old Oak Road.

Kuemmel opened the Public Hearing portion of the meeting at 10:52 a.m.
The appellant, Jim Fox, had been sworn in at the start of the first public hearing.

Fox explained the request for variances. He explained the homeowner would like to build a 24’ x
36’ detached garage in the street yard of the property. He added that the neighboring properties to
the north and east sit at least fifteen feet higher in comparison, which causes water drainage issues
in the property in question. He also explained that, to remediate the situation, the property owners
have created swales encompassing the north and east sides of the lot. Fox stated that the
homeowners would like to build the garage away from the swales, in a way that rainwater runoff is

6



not greatly increased by the construction and the foundations of the garage are kept intact. Building
the detached structure closer to the house and out of the street yard would also not be a possibility,
since the area contains holding tanks. After studying the parcel’s conditions, no other positions were
deemed ideal to keep the garage away from the swales.

Kuemmel asked three times if anyone wanted to speak in favor of the variance.

In Favor: None.

Kuemmel asked three times if anyone wanted to speak in opposition to the variance.
Against: None.

Kuemmel asked if the Zoning Administrator wanted to provide any testimony. The Zoning
Administrator stated no. Kuemmel asked if the applicant wanted to provide additional testimony. The
applicant stated no.

The Board asked staff if neighboring properties are also zoned A-2: Agricultural. Staff confirmed.

The Board asked the applicant to further explain the practical difficulties of moving the proposed
garage out of the street yard setback requirement. Fox stated that moving the addition towards the
house and completely within the side yard would place the addition within the existing swales.

The Board asked if the swales could be altered to accommodate the new building. Fox contended
that homeowners have already spent approximately $70,000 to control water runoff from neighboring
properties. Not only would altering the swales cost more, but it would also not solve the issue entirely.

The Board asked if the current property owners had built the house and were aware of the water
runoff issue prior to purchasing the house. Fox answered no. He added that this was the only property
in that area with severe drainage issues and a corner lot with a principal structure angled 45 degrees,
creating an exceptional circumstance.

The Board asked if neighbors expressed opposition to the project. Staff affirmed that no comments
or messages were received in opposition to the project prior to the meeting.

Kuemmel reviewed the appeals process to the applicant and then asked if there were any other
questions. No further questions were asked. Kuemmel closed the public hearing at 11:18 a.m.

5. Board Meeting

SE. Deliberate the requests of Case No. 25-003, Jim Fox
Kuemmel reviewed the request with the Board and opened the floor for Board discussion.

The Board, analyzing Exhibit A, asked staff where on the property the 75-foot setback would begin.
Staff pointed out the location and mentioned that the South corner of the house is less than 75 feet
from the lot line. Staff also mentioned that the parcel itself is a legal non-conforming lot.

The Board then asked staff about the drainage issues within the property. Staff replied that the Village
7



did not require the property owner to build swales or record an easement that would prevent them
from constructing another structure on the lot.

The Board pointed out that, due to the orientation of the house, the parcel is perceived to be under
unique circumstances. However, these circumstances award the house an advantage when building
detached accessory structures in comparison to neighboring properties. Therefore, the property owner
has other alternatives to build the proposed garage in compliance with the zoning code.

The Board proceeded to discuss the findings of fact criteria:

e Preservation of intent: Accessory structures such as detached garages are uses permitted in
the A-2 district, therefore preserving the purpose and intent of the district.

o Exceptional circumstances: The orientation of the home and drainage issues that motivated
the construction of swales on the property impose exceptional circumstances on the parcel.

e Preservation of property rights: The orientation of the house grants more flexibility to the
property owner when building detached accessory structures. Therefore, granting the variance
will not preserve property rights of other property owners in the same district and vicinity.

e Absence of detriment: Granting the variance will not result in detriment to neighboring
properties.

5F. Decision on Case No. 25-003, Jim Fox

Mielke made a motion to deny the requested variances for Case No. 25-003 for a street yard setback
of 20 feet for a proposed 24’ x 36’ detached garage addition to the existing single-family home based
on the Board’s findings of fact. Seconded by Barnes.

Roll call
Barnes — Yes Mielke — Yes Rennert — Yes Lovdahl —No Kuemmel - No

The vote is 3-2 to deny the variance requests. Motion carried.

6. Continuing Business

None
7. Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at 12:03 p.m.

Prepared by, Respectfully submitted,
Natalia Nery de Farias, Peter Wagner
Planner/Zoning Administrator Development Director
Village of Caledonia Village of Caledonia



VILLAGE OF Meeting Date: September 30, 2025
CALEDONIA

ltem No. 4A
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS REPORT
Proposal: Variance Request
Description: Requests variances from Sections 16-10-3(a)(1) and 16-10-3(a)(3). The applicant is

requesting variances to allow for the construction of an accessory building with an
area of 1,584 square feet (36’ x 44’) and a height of approximately 20 feet on the
property at 12900 Northwestern Avenue.

Applicant(s): Todd Dombrowski

Address(es): 12900 Northwestern Avenue

Suggested Staff does not make a recommendation on variance requests.
Motion:

Owner(s): Todd Dombrowski

Tax Key(s): 104-04-22-30-055-000

Lot Size(s): +2.5 acres

Current Zoning

District(s): A-2, Agricultural District

Overlay District(s): N/A

Wetlands: [JYes [X No Floodplain: [1Yes [XNo
Comprehensive Industrial / Business Park
Plan:

Background: The applicant is requesting variances from Section 16-10-3(a)(1), which states that the
maximum area for an accessory structure is 1,500 square feet on parcels less than 5 acres in size; and
Section 16-10-3(a)(3), which limits the maximum height of accessory structures to 17 feet. While these
provisions apply to residential parcels, Section 16-10-3(b)(3) specifies that Agricultural parcels 3 acres or
less in size must also conform to the requirements in Section 16-10-3(a): Residential Accessory Structures.

The applicant proposes to construct a 36’ x 44’ accessory building to accommodate current needs. The
inclusion of a 12-foot-tall door results in a building height approximately 3 to 4 feet above the maximum
allowed by Village Code.

The applicant has submitted a narrative explaining the need for the variance. Village staff does not provide
recommendations regarding the request as staff has denied the proposed 36’ x 44’ accessory building as it
does not comply with zoning code area and height requirements.



Zoning Board of Appeals Report Meeting Date: March 26, 2024
Iltem No.: 4A

The following criteria should be used by the Zoning Board of Appeals when making a decision. An
explanation of how the variance request applies to each one should be incorporated as part of the Board’s
deliberation.

Preservation of Intent: No variance shall be granted that is not consistent with the purpose and intent of
the regulations for the district in which the development is located. No variance shall have the effect of
permitting a use in any district that is not a stated permitted use, accessory use, or conditional use in that
particular district.

Exceptional Circumstances: There must be unique circumstances or conditions applying to the lot or
parcel or structure that do not apply generally to other properties of uses in the same zoning classification,
and the granting of the variance should not be of so general or recurrent nature as to suggest that the
zoning ordinance should be changed.

Economic Hardship and Self-imposed Hardship Not Grounds for Variance: No variance shall be
granted solely on the basis of economic gain or loss. Self-imposed hardships shall not be considered as
grounds for the granting of a variance.

Preservation of Property Rights: The variance must be necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of
substantial property rights possessed by other properties in the same zoning district and same vicinity.

Absence of Detriment: No variance shall be granted that will create substantial detriment to adjacent
property or that will materially impair or be contrary to the purpose and spirit of this ordinance or the public
interest.

If the Board agrees that the applicant met criteria for granting a variance, the Board can make a motion to
grant a variance allowing the applicant to construct an accessory building with an area of 1,584 square feet
and a height of approximately 20 feet on the property located at 12900 Northwestern Avenue, Parcel ID No.
104-04-22-30-055-000. Please include the findings of fact found by the Board with the motion.

Prepared by: Respectfully submitted:
ki Ty b ”

/77 77@ Joni %[LAXW/L

Natalia Nery de Farias Peter Wagner, AICP

Planner/Zoning Administrator Development Director

Page 2 of 2



VILLAGE O

F
CALEDONIA

12000 NORTHWESTERN AVE
104-04-22-30-055-000

SUBJECT
PROPERTY

:

S

o

UNFL

360

OWER DR

US Feet




Planning & Zoning Department office:

VILLAGE OF 5043 Chester Lane (262) 835-6419
ia, il:
CALED ONIA o Enlgzlrias@caledonia-wi.gov

www.caledonia-wi.gov

August 26, 2025

Todd Dombrowski

12900 Northwestern Avenue
Franksville, WI 53126

[email: todddom@hotmail.com]

RE: Denial Letter — Accessory Building
Section 16-10-3(a)(1): Area of Accessory Structures in Agricultural District
Section 16-10-3(a)(3): Height of Accessory Structures in Agricultural District
12900 Northwestern Avenue

| have reviewed the accessory building permit application for the structure proposed in the rear
yard of your property located at 12900 Northwestern Avenue. Unfortunately, | am unable to
approve the accessory building permit application because the proposed building area and height
exceed the maximum allowable dimensions of 1,500 square-feet and 17 feet, respectively.

Municipal Code Section 16-10-3(a)(1) states:

Parcels Less Than 5 Acres. The area of an accessory structure shall not exceed 1,500 square
feet.

Municipal Code Section 16-10-3(a)(3) states:
Parcels Less Than 5 Acres. Buildings shall not exceed 17 feet in height.

Please consider this letter as an official denial of your request to construct the accessory building
at 12900 Northwestern Avenue as proposed. You have the right to appeal this decision per Section
16-3-1 of the Municipal Code, which allows a person to request a variance from the zoning before
the Zoning Board of Appeals within thirty (30) days of written notice of the decision of the Zoning
Administrator.

Please contact me if you have any questions regarding this matter. | can be reached at (262) 835-
6419, or via email at NFarias@caledonia-wi.gov.

Sincerely,

Natalia Nery de Farias
Planner & Zoning Administrator


mailto:todddom@hotmail.com
mailto:NFarias@caledonia-wi.gov

VILLAGE OF prone
CALEDONIA Caledona, W1 55405 | s cal

262-835-4451
262-835-2388
edonia-wi.gov

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

Notice is hereby given that the Village of Caledonia Zoning Board of Appeals will hold a
public hearing at 9:00 a.m. on Tuesday, September 30, 2025, in the Caledonia Village Hall
at 5043 Chester Lane, Caledonia, Wisconsin. The purpose of the hearing is to hear
appeals for relief from Title 16 (Zoning), which has been adopted by the Village pursuant
to Title 16 of the Code of Ordinances of the Village of Caledonia:

Todd Dombrowski
12900 Northwestern Avenue
Franksville, WI 53126

Requests variances from the following Municipal Code Sections:

Sec. 16-10-3(a)(1), which states that the maximum area for an accessory structure is 1500
square feet on parcels less than 5 acres in size.

Sec. 16-10-3(a)(3), which limits the maximum height of accessory structures to 17 feet.

If granted, this variance would allow the applicant to construct a 1,584-square-foot,
approximately 20-foot-tall detached accessory building on the property located at 12900
Northwestern Avenue, Parcel ID No. 104-04-22-30-055-000.

Applicants are subject to Title 16: Zoning and Village Board of Appeals of the Village of
Caledonia Zoning Ordinance.

The above petition is on file at Village of Caledonia Planning & Zoning Department, 5043
Chester Lane, Caledonia WI. The file is open to public view, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Mon.
through Fri. The file is also available online at www.caledoniawi.zoninghub.com in the
“Pending Applications” section. This location is handicap accessible. If you have other
special needs, contact the Village of Caledonia Clerk at 262-835-4414. Questions
regarding the public hearing please contact Natalia Nery de Farias, Phone#: (262) 835-
6419. Email: NFarias@caledonia-wi.gov



BOARD OF APPEALS

VILLAGE OF

VARIANCE APPLICATION

Applicant (Prease print or type) Date: [ ?_ A~ ‘,:"L,_-';,ﬁf

Name:t 75 ot Ly n foreins SIES |

Business Name:

Addvess:| /3009 Mrrdhy o iforn Meie

S Y 1z [ rr02¢

Property Owner (This section can be leit blank if same as above)

Name: |

Business Name: |

Address:l
City: | State: | Zip: |
Phone: | Email: L

‘EI Request for Variance - ] Request for Interpretation of

Zoning Ordinance and Reversal

Generally Describe the Vari R : : e
y ’ lance Request Hers of Order, Requirement, Decision,

A ool [Pt Fo conStovct oo £oleliap or determination of
o iy . ~ P . . »

9 7t B Ay ,é/»'j";“ e PHhem it revr |, Administration Official.
s o = _ 2. 18N /A Attach a separate sheet listing
rolfed a7eiy ,é v- 4/3')’7) w7 be 36 % %1, reasons why you claim this order,
_ f‘/w) 22 T P requirement, decision, or

determination is erroneous.

Location/Address: |72 700 WP e Porr Ave | TaxKeyNumberts)y: | 1pY-07 1130055 000 |

I certify that | have included all applicable submittal data and $450 Filling Fee as outlined on the Board of Appeals
Procedures sheet along with three (3) scaled hard copies and a full pdf digital file:YeSD

| hereby certify that | have read and fully understand the variance and developer's deposit procedures and
failure to comply with the Village requirements will resuit in this application being withheld from

consideration by the Vill
P e

*“Signature of Property Owner Signature of Applicant (Working as Agent for owner)
e A A | / . s
Lot o /J/fﬁ i (/2 -
Print Name Print Name

2 & FOFS
Date Date




mvamaen N BSOS WA53 .

LRI MTELED0

M OBEIEDEY 1TRAY

R T SR
% OER I W STEHAN

L L 3y pares Ty

%{2}4&%{@?

ITT PR RN

SHEE IR N
STEE L2 S

PARCEL A

W OPITOT 0eaT AR B4 Lok AAISD Al H ST S a0 EETR e,
SR 101 1 SR W T3 DN, 1 Y WU O SATBGEL TOURTY O
P, AL B VTN, D B SICHEC S TRLTE

L
i

4

EIGNTUED 47 Tl TINTEY 400 TR b W8 WEIDH 38

—

i i
ST RA W 36000 I

85 ML

N BFIT'0TE 215807

e e 85 5 pibia O s fa a1
Sy i o SRR R N s

TR R st s 1 st 2 b 6
—— ..-.ﬁ.ua!! et (I i o ot 6

3 ke 13 s st b ¢
,lnil..ne....r!ill..n:.l..?_!.

el hin Wty T iy 18 st g
iy i CHARE et 108 P,

Sty 30 ks 23 gnisoen et s
3 [l 01 POa 3 Sieias o L wen

nﬁ#&arv.s:ll!tr.
e1n 17 rhaden 51 varsm Werl fo ¢

e
22 et 18 s, Rt o
]

-
H
i
'
]
i
|
i
i
!
H
1
4
Lo
T T e R s

it 30 ereias Wl ol w

M.I.itx:. o

B matia 80 s ol e
i!-k.l..-.-a‘ PR W ML o

e
ziaigiziéié ia
1636 a5

et gty e 1 ey v o

BETEES_KIRRCOO N
ETw LeREEE 5

7 -

Lesu
© -« DENHES ND. & ALiA WA S
ML AT W NFINOID 10 Y AT,
i pend o i o T AL
ol sl

© - BEMIIEE WHOH FRL FOUND

S BTOTE uhﬁ

STATE QF WSCONSN

COLMTY CF RACINE

The cbove~deacribed prapery hos been aurveyed under my difzction and
lhe cbove mop fs a cerwel representalion thersof.

DMTED AT: ,EN.__Z —.:m .u g Hq CCTOBER, 1947, E]
Jori=othEL L 3om g g —05

nxgwcmegﬁgzq =L
POTE L RMLEY, RS MO 1308

AMERICAM
SURVEYING
COMPANY,IMNE.
12707 CLIL K FRANKSVILLE, WISCONSM 53126
Fiot: (114} §35-2379

TEL. {+14] BI5—AT74

DA TE

g.
z
5
1
=
il
[ 4
™ ~le|m
R
-|8}°|3
a =
ol =
Ysm. &
w
Bmc y
=|Yim WF
zielsiEnls
RHwnww
[=1[8 10 Riat -1 n]

!

BOUNDRY/ PLAT OF SURVEY

TOWN OF CALEDONIA

EROJECT:

Sheet

of




—_ ——
lo M

he Board ot Prppe,'al‘—?: g-2-29
L 2vn (chua%‘hxne) o construct a
bulding tnat 1s B4 =sqFt and approximately
3 to Y higher than what the curfent
codes allow., | need a2 V2 foot Qoo so
b have +he clearance to fit My bq]onf)mgs
nside . The 3l x Y9 dimensions are what
| need to Hit vy bdongings nside;and
that 15 why 1t becomes &Y sqft over

the Lhmt of 1802 saft. s will not
a@zc:_t 'd.ny r\o:l%'hbo\r mcj wpm-p:z.rjufz;S becaus <
of 1ts p‘l,acemeﬁJc ON Ny lot. | would
LWKe €0 have my belongings nsid< of a
bL)'tld\nca~

Thank. ')/OUE

/I’;dd Bamb{&u‘s){ [




VILLAGE OF Meeting Date: September 30, 2025
CALEDONIA

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS REPORT

Iltem No. 4B

Proposal: Variance Request

Description:
Requests a variance from Section 16-10-1(c): General Requirements. The applicant

is requesting a variance to allow for the construction of a 120’ x 120’ pole building
with a setback of 7.5 feet from the side lot line on the property at State Highway 38.

Applicant(s): Robert & Gary Prochaska

Address(es): State Highway 38

;L;%%is:ted Staff does not make a recommendation on variance requests.
Owner(s): Prochaska Farms

Tax Key(s): 104-04-22-09-061-010

Lot Size(s): + 15 acres

Current Zoning

District(s): A-2, Agricultural District

Overlay District(s): N/A

Wetlands: [JYes [X No Floodplain: [1Yes [XNo
Comprehensive Agricultural, Rural Residential, and Open Land
Plan:

Background: The applicants are requesting a variance from Section 16-10-1(c), which states that
accessory structures may be permitted in Agricultural Districts prior to the construction of a principal
structure, provided that the accessory structure complies with the setback requirements for a principal
structure in that district. According to Section 16-6-2(b): Basic Regulations, the side and rear setbacks for
principal structures in the A-2 District are 25 feet.

The pole buildings previously existent in the same location south of the property, built in 1961 and 1977,
were used for agricultural activities and destroyed in a fire that occurred on January 11, 2025. The applicant
is requesting a variance to allow for a side yard of 7.5 feet to rebuild a 120’ x 120’ pole building using the
same foundations. The properties to the east and west of the proposed location are also zoned A-2:
Agricultural, each with a single-family home.



Zoning Board of Appeals Report Meeting Date: September 30, 2025
Iltem No.: 4B

The applicant has submitted a narrative explaining the need for the variance. Village staff does not provide
recommendations regarding the request as staff has denied the proposed 120’ x 120’ pole building as it
does not comply with zoning code area and height requirements.

The following criteria should be used by the Zoning Board of Appeals when making a decision. An
explanation of how the variance request applies to each one should be incorporated as part of the Board’s
deliberation.

Preservation of Intent: No variance shall be granted that is not consistent with the purpose and intent of
the regulations for the district in which the development is located. No variance shall have the effect of
permitting a use in any district that is not a stated permitted use, accessory use, or conditional use in that
particular district.

Exceptional Circumstances: There must be unique circumstances or conditions applying to the lot or
parcel or structure that do not apply generally to other properties of uses in the same zoning classification,
and the granting of the variance should not be of so general or recurrent nature as to suggest that the
zoning ordinance should be changed.

Economic Hardship and Self-imposed Hardship Not Grounds for Variance: No variance shall be
granted solely on the basis of economic gain or loss. Self-imposed hardships shall not be considered as
grounds for the granting of a variance.

Preservation of Property Rights: The variance must be necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of
substantial property rights possessed by other properties in the same zoning district and same vicinity.

Absence of Detriment: No variance shall be granted that will create substantial detriment to adjacent
property or that will materially impair or be contrary to the purpose and spirit of this ordinance or the public
interest.

If the Board agrees that the applicant met criteria for granting a variance, the Board can make a motion to
grant a variance allowing the applicant to construct a 120’ x 120’ pole building with a side setback of 7.5
feet on the property located at State Highway 38, Parcel ID No. 104-04-22-09-061-010. Please include the
findings of fact found by the Board with the motion.

Prepared by: Respectfully submitted:
(k -

bl oy b i %M/m

Natalia Nery de Farias Peter Wagner, AICP

Planner/Zoning Administrator Development Director

Page 2 of 2



STATE HIGHWAY 38 0 165 330 660 N
104-04-22-09-061-010 oS Feet A

SUBJECT
PROPERTY




Planning & Zoning Department office:

VILLAGE OF 5043 Chester Lane (262) 835-6419
( :A I ED ONIA Caledonia, W1 53402 | email:
www.caledonia-wi.gov NFarias@caledonia-wi.gov

September 5, 2025

Prochaska Farms

10416 6 Mile Road
Caledonia, WI 53108

[email: profarm@execpc.com]

RE: Denial Letter — Accessory Building
Section 16-10-1(c): General Requirements
State Highway 38, Parcel No: 104-04-22-09-061-010

| have reviewed the accessory building permit application for the structure proposed on your
property located at State Highway 38. Unfortunately, | am unable to approve the accessory
building permit application because the proposed building does not meet the minimum required
setback of 25 feet.

Municipal Code Section 16-10-1(c): General Requirements states:

Accessory structures may be permitted in the agricultural districts prior to the presence of the
principal structure provided that the parcel on which the accessory structure will be located is ten
(10) contiguous acres in size or larger, the accessory structure is intended for an agricultural use,
the proposed accessory structure meets the setback requirements needed for a principal structure
in that district, and the accessory structure is at least one hundred (100) feet from any existing
residence on abutting parcels.

Please consider this letter as an official denial of your request to construct the accessory building
at State Highway 38 as proposed. You have the right to appeal this decision per Section 16-3-1
of the Municipal Code, which allows a person to request a variance from the zoning before the
Zoning Board of Appeals within thirty (30) days of written notice of the decision of the Zoning
Administrator.

Please contact me if you have any questions regarding this matter. | can be reached at (262) 835-
6419, or via email at NFarias@caledonia-wi.gov.

Sincerely,

Natalia Nery de Farias
Planner & Zoning Administrator


mailto:profarm@execpc.com
mailto:NFarias@caledonia-wi.gov

VILLAGE OF Phone:

262-835-4451
262-835-2388

CAI ] ED ONIA 5043 Chester Lane Fax:
Caledonia, WI 53402 www.caledonia-wi.gov

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

Notice is hereby given that the Village of Caledonia Zoning Board of Appeals will hold a
public hearing at 9:00 a.m. on Tuesday, September 30, 2025, in the Caledonia Village Hall
at 5043 Chester Lane, Caledonia, Wisconsin. The purpose of the hearing is to hear
appeals for relief from Title 16 (Zoning), which has been adopted by the Village pursuant
to Title 16 of the Code of Ordinances of the Village of Caledonia:

Robert & Gary Prochaska
10416 6 Mile Road
Caledonia, WI 53108

Request a variance from Municipal Code Section 16-10-1(c): General Requirements,
which states that accessory structures may be permitted in Agricultural Districts prior to
the construction of a principal structure, provided that the accessory structure complies
with the setback requirements for a principal structure in that district. The applicants are
requesting a variance to allow for a setback of 7.5 feet for the construction of a 120’ x 120’
pole building.

If granted, this variance would allow the applicants to construct a 120’ x 120’ pole building
on the property located at State Highway 38, Parcel ID No. 104-04-22-09-061-010, with a
setback of 7.5 feet from the side lot line.

Applicants are subject to Title 16: Zoning and Village Board of Appeals of the Village of
Caledonia Zoning Ordinance.

The above petition is on file at Village of Caledonia Planning & Zoning Department, 5043
Chester Lane, Caledonia WI. The file is open to public view, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Mon.
through Fri. The file is also available online at www.caledoniawi.zoninghub.com in the
“Pending Applications” section. This location is handicap accessible. If you have other
special needs, contact the Village of Caledonia Clerk at 262-835-4414. Questions
regarding the public hearing please contact Natalia Nery de Farias, Phone#: (262) 835-
6419. Email: NFarias@caledonia-wi.gov



- j€.. o o f?”‘l' mi plense eall

\r/\_{E canT move  boilding To Wes T
becavse o*P \/JE CuERGIES jOUBlED
Fleelric | jwes RunNivGg To Noet
f'Bu}Ldft\)G'S LL_)E f\!so pDERcu=d MOV LG
loT LiNE and THar was NOT Exceplible,
"Qﬁom .}JE‘L&A}SER% {:ﬂﬁc:'T‘h T F ]/)UELAI‘NG WAS

MOVYED Jo S E=T NONE of’ the aveprhean |

Doogs wout d Live vp WITH Yooringe £

aﬁg DACKE. SAtE ’-;% =5, WE So loustE

heieid Yoe [ Dooks .

| (e o hasla Frem his beepl
AT The same | soATiod SNCE JCH&}’]T*(ESE
Two (Idings , Ode was hoflt 8 196]
£ THe oflze was 1977 avp weee vsed $op
!Pﬂmhﬁ_ﬂﬁegﬁ_ugﬁﬂmmﬂgmeﬁ_
| oe ﬂ“’lﬂahme&? Sloeace.

A v lAlLJ,UOULD L{.Kf_ﬂ_\/ﬁ.@&t&ﬁfgﬂ_&&nﬂi_
| 145 e baeelelh i liel was 4
e TN ('DM_:JURUC‘,E Mﬁ GRST tuas
 QREATED . 14\_{: WOoULD \]usT Liga ). - . |
Rebuild on sSame fovwpation ; FosTivgs |
T slahs afE 10 Goop Seuveatieal condition

__ " SE— .EW{(@ . tL--qalnﬁ%

~(asiveeink o

Bob  Srey




7 {/ : j J. ’
e& ! AM!.,.L._J LI X &_ &, L2 8421 8A

wilffng i i o ol

ATLA L L A‘u."

hodh o g a5 s ot

ﬂbaag_QeI‘Qo;L’,O

/MZM MAA %:%ﬂ /MZMZ@_AQ




- B | T - e —




ArcGIS WebMap

August 15, 2025 1:1,020 )

i Sections '- -1 Municipal Boundaries 2024 Spring Aerial - Blue: Band_3 ? '-0.91- - o-j‘:.1 it -m?2 -mI 1

:] Tax Parcels Road Right of WHYS Red: Band—1 H,ﬂwbuu(:y. Rmﬂ?;sm[::izsmwum wbw:::‘:::
—— Road Right of Ways B Green: Band_2 P S e LT

Text Related Lines



bueied Porwer
LinEs T Ni:-%‘rf{ ArcGIS WebMap

pid g

L] Hese &
BB Buiidings
Burweb

72.00'

WE have ERSENY
Te USE THIS
‘P&cPr:o.Kf

August 15, 2025

1 - Sections oSG Municipal Boundaries 2024 Spring Aerial [ . Band_3
- Road Right of Ways B oo Band 1
 ext Related Lines — Road Right of Ways MM Green: Band_2

1:1,020
0.01

1] 0.01
. i

e —t—
1} 001 0.02 0.04 km
Racine County, Racine Counly, SEWRPC., Scutheastem Wisconsin Regional
Planning Commission, Wisconsn DR, Esrl Canada, Esr, HERE, Garmin,

ArciS Wabapp Bulder



	Agenda
	Minutes
	4A - Staff Report
	4A - Location Map
	4A - Denial Letter
	4A - Notice of Pubic Hearing
	4A - BOA Application

	4B - Staff Report
	4B - Location Map
	4B - Denial Letter
	4B - Notice of Public Hearing
	4B - BOA Application




